

Minutes

HILLINGDON STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL ON RELIGIOUS EDUCATION

7 November 2019

Meeting held at Committee Room 4 - Civic Centre,
High Street, Uxbridge



HILLINGDON
LONDON

	<p>Committee Members Present: Carole Jones (Chairman), Jasvir Singh Rayat, Father Desmond Banister, Pauline Byles, Joan Beavington, Melanie Dring MA BA(Hons) PGCE, Councillor Shehryar Ahmad-Wallana and Councillor Mohinder Birah (In place of Councillor Jagjit Singh)</p> <p>Also Present: Keith Lunn, Angela Lount, Sina Rohani, Councillor John Hensley, Councillor Carol Melvin BSc (Hons), Councillor June Nelson and Councillor Jagjit Singh</p> <p>LBH Officers Present: Navpreet Minhas (School Improvement Support Officer) and Steve Clarke (Democratic Services Apprentice)</p>
1.	<p>MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (<i>Agenda Item 1</i>)</p> <p>RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 28 March 2019 be agreed as a correct record.</p>
2.	<p>PREVIOUS HSACRE ANNUAL REPORTS (<i>Agenda Item 2</i>)</p> <p>Elenor Paul, Adviser to HSACRE, explained to the Committee the requirement for all SACREs to produce and submit an annual report on their activity to the Secretary of State for Education. It was highlighted that a HSACRE annual report had previously not been produced for the 2016/17 and 2017/18 academic years and the Committee were to approve the newly produced draft reports for 2016/17 and 2017/18.</p> <p>The chair asked the Committee if there were any changes they would like to propose or points they would like to raise with regards to the previous HSACRE annual reports. The Committee approved of the reports for submission to the Secretary of State for Education.</p> <p>RESOLVED: That the Committee endorsed the HSACRE Annual Reports for 2016-17 and 2017-18.</p>
3.	<p>DRAFT HSACRE ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 (<i>Agenda Item 3</i>)</p> <p>Consideration was given to the draft HSACRE annual report for the academic year 2018/19. The chair asked the Committee if there were any changes or comments they would like to make regarding the 2018/19 draft report, to which there were none. The Committee approved of the report for submission to the Secretary of State for Education.</p>

RESOLVED: That the Committee noted the contents of the report and provided any comments prior to submission to Councillor David Simmonds CBE, Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Education and Children's Services.

4. **OFSTED INSPECTIONS OF PRIMARY SCHOOLS UNDER NEW EDUCATION INSPECTION FRAMEWORK - IMPLICATIONS FOR RE** (*Agenda Item 4*)

The Chair introduced the item relating to the implications for RE from OFSTED's (Office for Standards in Education, Children's Services and Skills) inspection of primary schools under the new Education Inspection Framework. The HSACRE adviser stated that OFSTED had recently changed the way they assess the provision of RE in schools. It was conveyed that the new Education Inspection Framework had the potential to improve the way schools are held to account for the provision of Religious Education and to recognise best practice.

Members enquired as to how the new framework would improve the standing of RE in schools; it was explained that the framework will provide additional accountability for the provision of RE through inspection guidelines and inspectors' could choose a number of subjects whereby they can conduct a 'Deep Dive'. The Chair explained to the Committee what a deep dive entails, noting that, OFSTED had commissioned them in response to a small number of schools providing inadequate RE arrangements. The Chair also indicated that deep dives into RE would create a clearer picture of the quality of RE provision in the Borough and highlight particular areas for improvement.

The Committee discussed the contents of the NATRE (National Association of Teachers of Religious Education) document; the Committee's adviser clarified that the focus of the report was to inform SACRE's of the state of RE nationally. It was conveyed that, of the 14 schools inspected under the new OFSTED framework, 9 were classified as having 'Good' overall effectiveness; and 5 of the 14 schools were subject RE 'Deep Dives'.

Members noted the difficult position RE teachers found themselves in when compared to other foundation subjects, specifically noting the prioritisation of core subjects such as English, Maths and Science. The Committee explored approaches whereby the HSACRE could better equip/prepare RE teachers for OFSTED deep dives. It was suggested that, a focus group could be held with the Borough's RE coordinators, (Headteachers and RE teachers) to determine the type of support the HSACRE could offer.

Members discussed the HSACRE budget, noting that the lack of funds was preventing the Committee from carrying out its functions. The HSACRE adviser noted that other London Borough's received SACRE budgets 4 to 5 times higher than that of HSACRE. Members specifically mentioned that money from charitable sources should not form the bulk of funding. Committee members suggested putting forward a case for more funding to the Cabinet Member for Education and Children's Services, using the OFSTED report and the importance of religious literacy as justification.

The Committee was updated on the recent success of the Guru Nanak 550 celebrations which took place in the Middlesex Suite at the Civic Centre, Uxbridge where roughly 200 people attended. The Chair informed members that with other religious events coming up, specifically noting the Hillingdon Inter Faith Network's Inter Faith Week, there was an opportunity to establish further cross-faith community events.

RESOLVED: That the Committee discussed and noted the report, and agreed the

	content of any advice regarding RE that it wishes to provide to local schools on the framework.
5.	<p>RE GCSE RESULTS FOR HILLINGDON (<i>Agenda Item 5</i>)</p> <p>It was noted that the Department for Education were yet to publish the 2018/19 GCSE results for Religious Education. The committee agreed to defer this item to the next HSACRE meeting.</p> <p>RESOLVED: That this item be deferred to a future meeting of HSACRE, once the 2018/19 RE GCSE results have been published.</p>
6.	<p>NEXT MEETINGS (<i>Agenda Item 6</i>)</p> <p>It was noted that the next meeting of HSACRE was due to take place on 26 February 2020, which coincides with 'Ash Wednesday', a change of date was proposed, and a date in March 2020 would be confirmed with the chairman before being circulated to members.</p>
	The meeting, which commenced at 6.10 pm, closed at 6.59 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the resolutions please contact Steve Clarke on 01895 250833. Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.